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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Juniper Green Field Private Limited
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Juniper Green Field Private Limited (‘the
Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
{including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act') in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other information
comprises the information included in the Director's report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon,

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other infarmation
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is rmaterially inconsistent with the financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatermnent of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The accompanying financial staterments have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.
The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(3) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the
Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
are also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control;

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also
respansible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial staterments in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

» Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report terthe related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
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disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 were audited by the
predecessor auditors, S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, who have expressed an unmodified opinion on those
financial statements vide their audit report dated 15 September 2023

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are
not applicable to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section
2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143({11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit,
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial
statermeants,

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph
14{h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
{as amended).

c) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

fi The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph 14(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 14({h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended);

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such contrals, refer to
our separate report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and
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h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

iv. (a)

(b)

vi.

The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position
as at 31 March 2024;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foresesable losses as at 31 March 2024,

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 46(iv) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the
intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate
Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate
Beneficiaries,

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 46(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ({the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2024;

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial
year commencing on 1 April 2023, has used an accounting software for maintaining its
books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same
has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software
except that, the audit trail feature was not enabled at database level for accounting software
to log any direct data changes, as described in note 45 to the financial statements. Further,
during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with in respect of the accounting software where such feature is enabled.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Fjrm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Partner

Membership No.: 503843 \&

Deepak Mittal K

UDIN: 24503843BKFASES310

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 September 2024
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the
members of Juniper Green Field Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(i) (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

(b)

(d)

(e)

quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant details
of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property. plant and
equipment and relevant details of right of use asset under which the assets are physically
verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In
accordance with this program, certain property, plant and equipment and relevant details
of right of use asset were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of all the immaovable properties held by the Company (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the lessee), disclosed in Note 3(i) to the financial statements, are held in the name of the
Company.

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment {including right-of-use
assets) or intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The Company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause Afiiy(a) of

(iii)

(v}
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the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Order’) is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees by

banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 of the Act. As the
Company is engaged in providing infrastructural facilities as specified in Schedule VI of the Act,
provisions of section 186 except sub-section (1) of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In
our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of sub-section (1) of section 186 of the Act in respect of investments,
as applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies {Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Juniper Green Field Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2024

{vi) The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly
reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by
the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.
However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view o
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii)(a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that there are no
statutory dues referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given o us, we report that no transactions
were surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books
of accounts.

(ix) (a} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received
from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank ar financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, maney raised
by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any funds on short term basis during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. ;

{e) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company does not
have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{ix){g)
and clause 3(ix){f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Qrder is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Gompany has been noticed or reported during the
period covered by our audit. 2 CHIEDIO
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date fo the
members of Juniper Green Field Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2024

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made fo
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 1.3 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit,

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made o
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(i) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with
section 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 24,
Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules
2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company is not reguired to constitute an audit committee
under section 177 of the Act.

(xiv)(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business as
required under the provisions of section 138 of the Act.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

(xv)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi}(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act 1934, Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(b) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

(xvi) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is nat applicable to the Company.

(xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information in the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors
and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheat date. \We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the company. We further Epa\tﬁhatqur\repurting is based on the facts up to the date of the
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Juniper Green Field Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2024

audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as
and when they fall due.

(xx)  According to the information and explanations given to ug, the Company does not meet the
criteria as specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi)  The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.: D01076N/N500013

* i E ) (AT O

Deepak Mittal

Partner

Membership Mo.: 603843
UDIN: 24503843BKFASEG310

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 September 2024
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Juniper
Green Field Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Juniper Green Field Private Limited ('the
Company') as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential component of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India, These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence fo the Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI') prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting ('the Guidance Note') issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonahble
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
ar error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Juniper
Green Field Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024,
hased on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Charterad
Accountants of India.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

(P
Deepak Mittal
Fartner

Membership Na.; 503843
UDIN: 24503843BKFASEG310

Place: Gurugram
Date; 16 September 2024
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JUNIFER GREEN FIELD PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN- L0101, 2020PT359633

Balance Sheet s at March 31, 2024

(Al amounts are stated in ¢ leihis, unless oiherwise stated)

Asal Asnt
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Trade payahles 21
Tatal putstading dues of micro enterprises and suall ciolerprisess 18.15 154
Tutal vutstandiing dues of ereditars ather than meero enferprises and small enterprises 141.%21 £3.1R
Cilier current financial liabilitics 23 121002 276124
Other cusrent liabilitics 23 G740 ST
Provisivas 24 130 2289
Suly drlal (E) 71335.-1!5 H.EHIAR
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ({0 D E) HT. 50095 20.0%0,58
Summisary of material accounting polcy lnfomarion 2
The accempanyigs nofes are an integral part of e fioaneial statements
A3 per onr report of even dae
Fur Walker Cliandiok & Co. LLI For wid an Deehiall of dhe Board of Trectors of
Chanered Accauntants Jumipur Gireew Fiekd Private 1imited

Tirm Repistration Mot Q01T SMO0MES
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Maresh Munzukhaui Parag Agrawal
Fariuer Direcio Iireclor
Memhership Mo, 503843 Lo D09 D Lk E4GETIT
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JUNIPER GREEN FIELD PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN- U40100DL202Z0PTC3ISY633

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise sialed)

Particulars Motes

For the vear ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Income
[tevenue from operations 25 10,439 08 593858
Other income 26 110.45 1,061,101
Tuotal income 10,549.53 6,099,509
Expenses
Employee benelils eapense 27 22066 737.95
Finance cost 28 H,5u7.12 97716
Depreciation and amortization expense 20 3,507.13 2,526.51
Other expenses 30 O10.66 760.26
Total expenses 11,235.57 10,001.88
L.oss before tax {686.04) (3.002.29)
Tax expense 31
Currenl lax expense = =
Deferred tax credit (80,43 {378.61)
Total tax expense / (credit) (80.43) (378.61)
Louss after tax (A) {605.61) {2,623.68)
Other comprehensive incoms
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods :

Re-measurement gain{loss) on defined benefit plans 393 {(7.19

Less: Income tax relating to above item (0.67) 1.23
Ttems thal will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Recognition of gainsflosses) in fair value of hedging instrument (net) (0.53) IR2.72

Less: Income tax relating to above item 0,08 (65.67)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (B) 2.82 Jii.09
Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (A+B) (B2, 79} (2,312.59)
Loss per cquity share: |Nominal value of share : T 10] 32
(1) Basic (¥) {0.56) (2.53)
(2 Driluted () (0.56) (2.53)

Summary of material accounting policy information 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our reporl of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP
Charlered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076M/MN500013

Dreepak Mittal f '.'I." 2\
Pariner
Membership Mo, 503843 . /3,

Place: Gurugram
Dale: September 16, 2024

Maresh Mansukhani
Lirector
M2 QA9BSR0

Place: Gurugram

ey

Prashant Pandia
Company Secrelary
M. Mo, - F12077

Plave: Gurugram

Date: Septemboer 16, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Juniper Green Field Private Limited

A

Parag Agrawal

Director
MM 02463717 @

Place: CGurngram

el .l':l,:'
A
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JUNIPER GREEN FIELD PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN- U40100DL20Z0PTCIS2633

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are stated in 2 lakhs, unless olherwise stated)

Particulars

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Operating activities
(L.oss) hefore tax (OH6.04) (3,002.29)
Adjustment to reconcile (loss) before tax to net cash Mows
Diepreciation and amaorlizalicn expensc 3,507.13 2,526,510
Interest income on Fixed deposit (28,70 (1,053.24)
Interest income on security deposit {5.23) (3.07)
Interest income on income tax refund (5.29) 5
Profit on redemption of mutual fund (33.16) (2.7%)
Met gain on investment in mutual fund measured ai fair value through profit amd loss (8.13) -
Tnterest on loan from financial instilution 5,2097.20 3,679.40
Interest on Buyers Credit 163.46 506,95
Intercst cxpenscs on lease liabilitics 13716 91,14
Interest expenses on decommissioning liahililies 2810 21,80
Tnlerest on OCDs from holding company B58.46 TTR30
Intercst on loan from holding company 5531 2026
Loss on disposal of Fixed Assels 27.16 2
Loss on terminalicn of lease 11.05 -
Other borrowing cost (bank guarantee, hedging cost and other charges) 57,57 B78.31

9,355,091 4,442.28
Working capital adjustmenis:
Decrease in ofher assels 23.42 481.8R
Diecrease in other fnancial assets 14.45 [ AE;
Decreased Increasze) in scourity deposils Th.40 (132.77)
{Increase) in trade reccivable {(714.25) (1,803.23)
Increasze in trade payable 57.44 T0.14
(Decrease) in provisions (31.82) (46.93)
{Decrease Increase in other current financial liabilities (35,11 283.30
Increase/{Decrease) in other current liahilities 058 (94.48)

R,756.05 3.269.37
Income tax paid {net of refund) 12017 (144.68)
Met cash flow generated from operating activities (A) B E76.22 3,124.69
Investing activities
Purchase of property plant and equipment including capital work in progress (2,015,510 (52,320,621
Purchase of intangible assels
Interest received 4414 I, (15R.94
Investneent in bank deposits (net) (refer note 13) G674 10,346.96
Investmenl in muteal fund (net) {2,141.91) 2,79
Met cash flow used in investing activitics (B) (3,206.54) (40,21 1.93)
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares - &00.00
Repayment of loan from financial institution (1,650.7%) 52.34R.17
Procceds from issue of Optionally converlible debentures ('OCDs" - THT.00
Proceeds! (repayment) from Buyers credil (net) - {12,026.65)
Proceeds of loan from holding company 1,070.00 1,065.00
Repayment of loan to holding company (930.00) -
Payment of lease labilities (99.87) (1,009.88)
Other borrowing cost paid (bank puarantee and other incidental charges) (14.71) (201.96)
Interzst paid on hormowing(s) (5,486.02) (4,255.88)
MNet cash flow (used in) / from financing activities () (711141} 37, 4R5.80
Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents [A+BHC) (1.441.73) (301.44)
Cash and eash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,5064.54 1,805.98
Cash and cash cquivalents at the cnd of the year® 122.81 1,564.54
#*Components of cash and eash equivalents (refer note 12)
Balances with schedule banks:
= Cn current accounts ) 122,81 53,36
- Cheque / DD in hand / - LR L
- Dhepusits with original maturity of less than 3 months W 5] - 1,503.00
Total cash and cash equivalents |2k 1 W 122.81 1,564.54




JUNIPER GREEN FIELD PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN- U401 00DLIOrTCISY633

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
(A1l amounts are staled in T lakhs, unless oltherwise stated)

Motes:
There are no non cash movements in financing & investing activities cxcept those disclosed above and note 13,

Summary of malerial accounting policy information (refer note 2)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co, LLP For and on behall of the Board of Direetors of
Chartered Accountants Juniper Green Field Private Limited

Firm Fegistration Mo.: O01070M/M 300013

*‘"r" -7 R T

Decpak Mittal \2\ / _Iff_-' Maresh Mansukhani Parag Agrawal
Pariner N Aot f Direcior Diirector

Membership Mo, 303843 DIN: a000480 DIN: 02463717 @/
Place; Gurmgram Place; Guragram Place: Gurupram

Date: September 16, 2024

. 2
Prashant Pandia
Company Secrelary
M. Mo, - F12077

Place: Guragram
Date: Seplember 16, 2024




JUNIPER GREEN FIELD PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN- U40100DL2020PTCASI633

Statement of change in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts are stated in 2 lukhs, unless ofherwise stated)

() Equity share capital

Parliculars Mumber of share T in lnkhs
As at April 1, 2022 9,93, 70,000 9437.00
Issue of share capital during the year B0 BRI OH)
Balance at March 31, 2023 10,73,70,000 10,737.00
Issue of share capital during e year - .
Bulance at March 31, 2024 1,73, 70,000 10, 737.00
(b} Other eyguity

Ruserves Other

il el Equity Component | Comprehensive
Parficulars of componnd Income Total

Retgined | financial instroment Cash flow

Earnings Hedge Reserve
As at April 1, 2022 {2K2.72) 1,175.69 {316.61) 57636
Luss for the year (2,623.68) - - (2,623.68)
Addjustinent on account of equily component as per Ind AS 109 4783 - 4783
Other comprehensive income for the year, nel of (ax (5.96) - 3705 310w
Balance at March 31, 2023 (2,912.36) 1,223.52 .44 (1,688.40
Loss for the year (a05.61) - - {605.61)
Adjustment on account ol eyuily component as per Ind AS 109 - - - -
Other comprehensive income for the vear, net of tax 3.26 - (.44} 182
Balance at Mareh 31, 2024 (3,514.71) 1,123.52 - {2,291.1%)

Summary of material accounting policy information (refer nole 2)

The accompanying noles ave an intcgral part of the Gnancial statements

As per our report of oven date

For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP
Firm Fegistration Mo 00 1076N/ME00013
Chartered Accountants

ol :
Pl

For and on hehadf of the Board of Directors of

Juniper Green Field Private Limited

@M

Fnhh

Deepak Mittal P, Py Maresh Mansukhani Parag Agrawal
Fartner N T Dircetor Dircetor
Membership Mo. 503843 o DIM: 06590480 DIN: 02463717

Place: Gurugrain Place: Curugram
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Prashant Pandia
Company Sceretary
M. Mo. - F12077

Place: Gurugiam
Mate: Seplember 16, 20024

Plage: Gurugram
Mate: September 16, 2024




Juniper Green Field Private Limited
CIN- U40100DL2020PTC359633
Notes to financial statements tor the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

2.1

2.2

Corporate information

Juniper Green Field Private Limited is a private Company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, The Company is & subsidiary of Juniper Green Energy Private Limited. The registered office
of the Company is localed at F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza 1, Plot No, 7, MLU, Sector 10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075,

The Company was incorporated on January 01, 2020, The Company is primarily engaged in the business of sctting up,
operating, generation, supply and sale of power in the field of renewable energy. The Company has commissioned 150
MW Solar Power Projects in the statc of Maharashira (“*Project™) and electricity generated from it is sold to Maharashtra
State Eleetricity Disiribulion Company Limited.

The financial statcments were authorized l[or issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Dircctors dated
Seplember 16, 2024,

Basis of Preparation and Material accounting policy information

Basis of preparation

The linancial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with the section 133 of the Companics
Act, 2013 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division 1T of Schedule 111 o the Companies
Act, 2013, (Tnd AS compliant Schedule IIT), as applicable 1o the linancial stalements.

‘The financial statements have been prepared on the acerual and going concern basis in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis excepl
[or derivative financial instraments and certain financial assets and financial liabilities which have been measured at fair
value or revalued amount as explained in relevant accounting policies.

The financial statements are presented in Rupees in lakhs, excepl when otherwise indicated.
Material accounting policy information

a) Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statemenls in conformity with lnd AS requires the management to make judgments,
cstimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and lisbilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilitics, at the end of the reporiing period. Although these estimates are based on the
management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and cstimates could
resull in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts ol assels or liahilities in future periods.

b} All assels and liabilities have been classificd as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle
of 12 months which is hased on the nature ol business ol the Company and other criteria set out in Schedule T11 to the
Companies Acl, 2013, Current assets do not include elements which are not expected to be realized within 12 months
and Current liabilities do not include item which are due afier 12 months, the period of 12 months being reckoned
from the reporting date.

¢}  Amended Accownting Standards (Ind AS) and interpretations effective during the year

iy  Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8
The amendments clarily the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in accounting policies and

the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entitics usc measurement lechniques and inputs to develop
accounling estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Company.




Juniper Green Field Private Limited

CIN- U40100DL20Z0PTC359633

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

i} Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1
The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the
requircment for entities lo disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclosc their
‘material” accounting policies and adding puidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making
decisions aboul accounting policy disclosures,

The amendments have had an impact on the Company's disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the
measurement, recognilion or presentation of any items in the Company's financial statcrments.

iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12

‘The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exceplion under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies
to transactions thal give rise lo equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases.

The amendments had no impaet on the Company.
d} Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangemens,
because it typically controls the goods or services belore transferring them to the customer.

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted lor discounts and other
incentives, if any, as specilied in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes or other amounts
collected form customers,

Sale of Power: The Company's revenue from sale of eleetricity generally includes one performance obligation, The
revenue from supply of power is recognized over lime when electricity is transferred to the customer i.e. on the supply
of units generated [rom the plant (o the grid. The revenue is recognized at the agreed tariff rate as per the terms of the
Power Purchase Agreements ("PPA") entered into with the cuslomer,

Revenue from operations on account of change in law cvents in terms of PPA’s with customers is accounted lor based
on the orders! reports of respective regulatory authorilies and management’s best estimates wherever required.

Sale of Verified Emission Reductions (VER): Revenue [tom sale of VER is recognised when following conditions
have been satisfied:

i. The significant risks and rewards ol ownership of the VER have been passed on to the buyer;

il. The amounl of revenue can be measured reliably;

iii. It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the sale ol VER will flow to the entity; and
iv. The cost incurred or to be incurred in respect to sale of VER can be measured reliably.

Contract Assets: A confract assel is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer, If the Company performs by transferring goods or services lo a cuslomer belore the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a conlract assel is recognized for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade Receivables: A reccivable represents the company s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional
(i.c., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

e} Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, and subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment other
than freehold land are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulaled impairment losses, if any.




Juniper Green Field Private Limited

CIN- U40100DL2020PTC35%633

Notes (o linancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The cosl comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and direetly atlributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving
at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separale asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associaled with the item will flow to the
Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in slatement of profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent Costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of propertly, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the
itemn of property, plant and cquipment, if’ it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part
will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably with the carrying amount of the replaced part getting
derecognised. The cost for day-to-day servicing of property, plant and cquipment are recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss as and when incurred,

Depreciation
Diepreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis, computed on the basis of useful
lives (as set-out below) preseribed in Schedule 1T to the Act:

| Assels category _ Usetul lite (in years)
Plant and Equipment * _ 25
Office cquipment 5
Furniture and fixtures - 10
| Computers (including servers) 3-6
Lease hold improvements _ Crver the period of lease lerm

* The useful life of plant & equipment is different from the useful life as prescribed under Parl C of Schedule 1T of
the Companies Act, 2013, The Company, based on technical assessment made by internal expert, has estimated the
useful life of sular power project as 25 years and believes that it reflects fair approximation of the period over which
the asset will generate economic benelil and is likely to be used

The identified components arc depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining assel is depreciated over the lifc of
the principal asset. The assels residual values and uscful lives are reviewed at each financial year end or whenever
there are indicators lor impairment and adjusied prospectively.

Derecognition

An ilem of property, plant and cquipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal
ar when no future cconomic benefits are expected from ils use or disposal, Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the assel (caleulaled as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the income statement when the asset is derccognized. The residual values, useful lives and methods of
depreciation of properly, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

f)  Intangible Assels

Intangible assets acquired scparately are measured on initial recognition al cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally
generaled intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is
reflected in statement of prolit & loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred,

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as cither finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortizalion method for an intangible assct with a
finite usciul life are reviewed at least at the end ol each reporting period. Changes in the expected uselul life or the
expecled pattern of consumption of [uture economic benefits embodicd in the asset are considered to modify the
amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are (reated as changes in accounting estimates. The amorlization




Juniper Green Field Private Limited

CIN- Ud01MDL2020PTC3I59633

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

expense on intangible asscls wilh finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless such expendilure
forms part ol carrying value of another asset. The software’s are amorlised over a period of three years,

Intangible asscts wilh indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but arc tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-gencrating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life conlinues Lo be supportable. If not, the ehange in useful life from indefinite (o finite is made
on a prospective basis,

Gains or losses arising from derecognilion of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assct and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognized.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an idenlified assel for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The company recognizes lease liabilitics to make lease payments and right-ol-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assels,

i) Right-ol-use asscts

The compuny recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset
is available for use), Right-of-use asscts are measured al cosl, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
lossies, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilitics. The cost of right-of-use assels includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease paymenis made at or before the commencement
date less any lcasc incentives received, Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorler of
the lease tenm and the estimated useful lives of the assets are follows:

o Leasehold Land - 28 vears

If ownership of the leased assel transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost rellects Lhe exercise
ol a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset, The right-of-use assets arc
also subject to impairment.

il) Lease linhilities

Al the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present valuc of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in subslance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives reccivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exereise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be excrcised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising Lhe oplion to terminate.

In calculaling the present value of leasc payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the leasc is not rcadily determinable. Aller the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilitics is increased Lo rellect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modilication, a
change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (c.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate used to determine such lease paymenis) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying assel.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applics the shorl-lerm lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (e, those leases thal have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not conlain a purchase option). It also applies
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(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

h)

i)

the lease of low-value assels recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low valuc.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low value assets are recognized a5 expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized as part of the cost ol a qualifying assel il they are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production ol that asset. Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the activities
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred.
Borrowing costs arc capitalized uniil the assets are substantially completed for their intended use or sale, All other
borrowing cosls are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary
costs incurred in connection with the arrengement ol borrowings, olher costs thal an enlily incurs in connection with
the borrowing of [unds and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are
regarded as an adjustment to the bomrowing cost.

Finanecial Instruments

A linancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial Asscis

Initial Recognilion and Measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at lair value plus, in the case of linancial asseis not recorded at fair value
through profil or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the fimancial assct. Purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assels within a lime [rame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace (regular way (rades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchasc
or sell the asset,

Subscguent Measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, [inancial assels are classified in four catepories:

#  Debl instruments al amortized cost

¢ Debt instruments at fair valuc through other comprehensive income (1Y TOCL)

e Deht instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through statement of Profit & Toss (FVTPL)
= Lquity instruments, measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt insiruments at amortized cost

A “deht instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset 15 held wilhin a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows
and

b) Contractual terms of Lhe assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SFPI) on the principal amount outstanding

Aller initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amorlized cosl is caleulated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and lees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in
finance income in the Statement of Profil and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The category applies to the Company’s trade receivables, unhilled revenue, other bank
balances, security deposits etc.

Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A ‘debt instrument’ is classificd as at the FYTOCL if both of the following criteria are met:

a)
b)

The objective of the business model is achieved boih by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
axsets, and
The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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Debl instruments included within the FVTOCT category are measured indtially as well as at each reporting datc at
fair value. Fair value movemenls are recognized in the other comprehensive imcome (OCT). However, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals in the statement of Profil and Loss, On derecognition of
the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI s reclassified from the equity to Statement of Prolit
and Loss.

Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCIT debl insirument is reporled as interest income using the ETR method.

Debt instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
FVTPL. is a residual category for debl instruments. Any debt instrument, which docs not meet the criteria [or
categorization as al amorlized cost or as FVTOCT, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or
FVITOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such eleclion is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminatcs a
measurement or recognition inconsisiency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch™),

Debl instrument included within FVTPL category are measured at [air value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial assct (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognized

{i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

a) The contractual rights to receive cash [lows from the asset have expired, or

b}  The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash lows [rom the [inancial asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash ows in [ull without material delay to a third party under a *pass-through’
arrangement; and Lither (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
{b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the assel,

When the Company has transferred ils righls to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what cxtent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership, When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all ol the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues o recognize the asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset, In that
case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The translerred asset and the associated liahility are
measured on a hasis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the lranslerred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the assel and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required
to repay.

Tmpairment of financial assels
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applics expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the (ollowing financial assets and credit risk exposure:

o Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured al amorlized cost e.g. deposits, trade receivables and
bank balances
Financial assel thal are debt instruments and arc measured as at FVTOCI
I'rade receivables or any contractual rght Lo receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions thal
arc within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18,

The Company follows ‘simplilied approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables,

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.
For recognition ol impainment loss on other financial asscts and risk exposure, the Company determines whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, twelve month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, il credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. 11, in the subsequeni period, credit quality of the instrument improves such thal
there is no longer a signilicant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the enlity reverts o recognizing
impairment loss allowance based on a twelve month ECL.
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Lifetime FCI. arc the cxpected credit losses resulting from all possible default cvents over the expected life of a
financial instrument, The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lilelime ECL which results from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date,

FCT. is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity cxpeets to receive (i.e., all cash shorifalls), discounted at the original EIR. When
estimating the cash flows, an enlity is required to consider:

¢ All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the (inancial instrument, However, in rare cases when the eapected life of the financial instrument
cannot be estimated reliably, then the enlity is required to use the remaining contractual term ol the [inancial
instrument.

e  Cash [lows [rom the sale of collateral held or other credil enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms,

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision malrix o determine impairment loss allowanece on portfolio
of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed defaull rales over the expected life
of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking cstimates.

ECI. impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income! expense in the
slatement of profit and loss, This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of profil and
loss. The halance sheet presentation lor financial instruments is described below:

For financial asscts measured at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance i.e. as an inlegral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the nel carrying amount, Until the assct
meets write off eriteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount,

For assessing increase in eredit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed Lo enable significant
inereases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Non derivative financial liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial lizhilities are classified, at initial recognition as financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, All financial lisbilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings, net of direetly attributable transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liahilitics depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liahilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilitics held for trading and [inancial
liahilitics designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss, Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, Scparated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments,

Gains or losses on liabilities held for rading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabililies designated upon initial recognition at lair value through profit or loss are designated as such at
the initial date of recognition, and only il the crileria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilitics designated as FVTPL,
fair valuc gains' losses atlributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/ losses are not
subsequently transferred to P&T.. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within cquity. All
other changes in fair value ol such liability are recognised in the statement of prolit or loss,
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i)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the IR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as
through the EIR amortization process.

Amorlized cost (s calculated by taking into accounl any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs thal are
an integral part of the ETR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement ol Profit and Loss,

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or cxpires.
When an existing financial liahility 1 replaced by another from the same lender on substantially dilferent terms, or
the terms of an cxisting lability are substantially modificd, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the Stalement of profit or loss,

Cash Flow Hedges:

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the effective portion of
cash (low hedges, while any incffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profil and loss, The
effective portion of cash flow hedges is adjusted to the lower of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
and the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged ilem.

The Company uscs forward currency contracts as hedges of its cxposure to loreign currency risk in forecast
transactions. The inelTective portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised in statement of profit & loss.
The Company designates only the spot element of a forward contract as a hedging instrument. The changes in fair
value of the forward element of the derivative are recognized in olher comprehensive income and are accumulated in
*Cash Flow Hedge Reserve’.

The difference between lorward and spot element at the date of designation ol the hedging instrument is amortiscd
over the period of the hedge. 1ence, in cach reporling perioed, the amortisation amount shall be reclassified from the
separate component of equity to prolit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. The accumulated balance in cash flow
hedge reserve is lransferred to property, plant and cquipment on settlement, Iowever, if hedge accounting is
discontinued for the hedging relationship thal includes the changes in forward clement of the hedging instrument, the
net amount (i.e. including cumulative amortisation) that has been accumulated in the separate component of equity
shall be immediately reclassified into statement ol profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

Reclassification of Financial instruments
The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilitics on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassilications are made for financial assets and [inancial liabilities,

Offsetting of Financial Insiruments
Financial assels and financial liabilitics are ofiset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a

currently enforceable legal right to olfset the recognized amounts and there is an intention Lo selile on a net basis, to
realize the assels and setlle the liabilities simultancously.

Foreign currencies
The [inancial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR or ¥) which is alsa the functional and reporting currency

of the Company.

Transactions and halances

Forcign currency lransactions are recorded in the funclional currency, by applying the exchange rate between Lhe
functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Fareign curreney monelary ilems outstanding at the balance sheel date are converted to functional currency using the
closing rale, Non-monetary items denominated in a forsign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported
using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions.

Exchange dillerences arising on monctary items on selilement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates dilferent
from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement ol prolil and loss in the year in which
they arise.
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k)

Mon-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency arc translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on ranslation of non-monetary items measured al fair
value is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the ilem (i.e, translation
differences on items whose fuir value gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss are
also recognized in other comprehensive income or profil or loss, respectively).

Taxes

Current Income taxes

Current income tax assels and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid Lo the
taxalion authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income

Current income tax relating to items recognized oulside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the lax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable lax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Delerred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liahilitics and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred tax liabilitics are recognised for all taxable temporary diflerences, except.

When the deferred tax liahility arises [rom the initial recognition of goodwill or an assel or liability in a transaction
that is not a husincss combination and, at the time of the transaction, allecls neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss,

In respect of taxable temporary diflerences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and intercsts in
joint ventures, when Lhe liming of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the loresesable future,

Deferred lax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry [orward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losscs. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused lax losses can be utilised, excepl:

When the deferred tax assct relating Lo the deductible temporary difference arises [rom the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, al the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

In respect of deductible temporary dilferences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, deferred lax assets are recognised only (o the extent that it is probable that the temporary diflerences
will reverse in the foreseeahle future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised

The carrying amount of deferrcd tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient laxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised delerred tax assets arc re-assessed al each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the tax rates that arc expected to apply in the year when the assct
is realised, or the liabilily is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporling date

Deferred tax relating to items recognised oulside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity.
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J

m)

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement hencfit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has ne obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident [und, The Company recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an cxpense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to
the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable
to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducling the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheel date, then excess is recognized as an assel
to the extent thal the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retirement benelit in the form of gratuity is a defined benelit scheme. The costs of providing benelils under the
scheme are determined on the hasis of actuarial valuation at each year-end using the projected unit credit method,
The actuarial valuation is carried out for the plan using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurcments, comprising of actuarial gains and losscs, the effeet of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts ineluded
in net interest on the net defined henefit liability and the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defincd benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding
debit or eredit 1o retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remcasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of

The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

The date that the Company recognizes related restructuring costs

Met interest is caleulated by applying the discount rate lo the net defined benefit liability or assct. The Company
recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the slatement of profit and
loss:

Service costs comprising current service cosls, past-service costs, gains and losses on curlailments and non-routine
settlements; and

Mel interest expense or income

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 maonths, is treated as short-term employee
benefit, The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the addilional amount that it expects to pay as
a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated al the reporting date,

The Company treats sccumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee
benelit for measurement purposcs. Such long-term compensated absences arc provided for based on the actuarial
valuation using the projected unil credit method at the year-end. The Company presents the leave as a current liability
in the balance sheet, to the extent it docs not have an unconditional right to defer its scttlement for 12 months after
the reporting date, Where Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right lo defer the settlement for a
period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non-current lability,

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the peried atiributable o equity
shareholders (after deducting atiributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period. Parily paid equity shares arc treated as a [raction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to
participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus clement in a rights
issue, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number ol equity shares
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted carnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of sharcs outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive polential equily shares.

Provisions

General
Pruvisions are recognized when thc Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
gvent, it is prohable that an outllow of resources embodying cconomic benelits will be required to settle the obligation
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o)

Pl

and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement ol profit or loss net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounled using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost,

Provisions are reviewed at the end of cach reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best cstimate. If'il s no
longer probable that an outllow of resources would be required to settle the obligalion, the provision is reversed.

Decommissioning liability

The Company records a provision for decommissioning costs of its solar power plants. Decommissioning cosls are
provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash lows and are recognised
as parl of the cost of the particular assct. The cash [lows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks
specific to the decommissioning liability, The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in
the statement of prolit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated [ulure costs of decommissioning are reviewed
annually and adjusted as appropriale. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added
to or deducted from the cost of the asset,

Impairment of non-financial assels

The Company assesses at cach reporting date whether there is an indication that an assct may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, or when annual impairment assessment [or an asset is required, the Company makes an estimale
of the asset’s recoverable amount. An assel’s recoverable amount is the higher of an assct's or cash-generating unit’s
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that arc largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the
carrying amount of an assct or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the assel is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amounl.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit & loss, excepl for assets that are previously revalued
where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, the impaimment is also recognised in
other comprehensive income up Lo the amount of any previous revaluation,

A previously recogniscd impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the eslimates used to determine
the assel’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount
ol the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount thal would have
heen determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously, Such reversal is recognised
in statement of comprehensive income unless the asset is measured at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance sheel comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, For the purpose
ol the consolidated statement of cash fows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above, net of owtstanding bank overdrafts as they arc considered an inlegral part of the Group's cash
managemenl,

q} Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivates at Fair valuc at cach balance sheet date, Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an assct or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction hetween
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is bascd on the presumption that the
transaction to scll the asset or transfer the Hability takes place either:
. In the principal market for the assct or liability
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. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advanlageous market for the asset or liahility
The principal or the most advantageous market must be aceessible by the Company.

The fair value of an assel or a liability is measured using the assumptions that markel participants would usc when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that markel participants act in their economic best interest.

A [air value measurement of a non-financial assel lakes into account a market participant's ability lo generate
economic benefits by using the asset in ils highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the assel in ils highest and best usc.

The Company usecs valuation lechniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available 1o measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in aclive markels for identical assets or liabilitics

Level 2 Valuation technigues [or which the lowest level input that is significant to the [air value measurement is
dircetly or indirectly observable

Level 3 Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the Fair value measurement is
unobservahle.

At cach reporting date, the management of the Company analysis the movemenls in the values of the asscts and
ligbilities which are required to be measured or reassessed as per the accounting policies of the Company.

Far asscts and liabililies that are recognized in the financial stalements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-asscssing categorization (based on the lowest
level input that is signilicant to the fair value measurcment as a whole) al the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of asscts and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level ol the [air value hierarchy as explaincd
above. This nole summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosurcs are given in the
relevant notes.

r)  Amendment to Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued but not yet effective.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*“MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under
Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time 1o time. As at 31 March, 2024, MCA has nol
notified any new standards or amendments 1o the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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A (i) Property, pland and equipnient

Land* Computers Lense halil Plant & Furmiture & (HTice Total
iinprovesment couipment Tizlure eduipment
Gross hlack (nt Cost)y
At April 00, 2022 H1531 1701 49.32 - - 2.07 Q0071
Additions during, the year T1.56 22 .6 B3,306,13 6.5 B8 83,422.08
[rigprants during the year - - . - -
At Murch 31, 2023 YDZHT 3067 49,531 H3,306.13 .86 17.04 B4,322.79
Adhditivms durimy the year . 347 - Y21. 70 - 355 et W
Lsposals during the year - - - 270,50 - 74 280,24
At March 31, 2024 002,87 41,14 49,52 83,548,219 646 2075 84,971,23
Depreciation’ Amortlsston
At Aprll 01, 2022 4.75 G064 - - 107 12,46
Charge for the year 1114 5.20 2.426.60 N 1R2 445,94
Dispossls - . - - : =
At March 31, 2023 15.89 11.54 2 ALGAD 14 1.5 245840
Chnrpe for the year 1182 .22 336457 i3] N 1, 3R6.05
Disipasals - 1062 - 0.23 1085
Al Mareh 31, 2024 - 27.71 17.006 5,780,855 0E3 745 5,833,460
Wet enrrying viulue
Al March 31, 2023 Q08T 13.7TH ATl B0,670.53 .60 14.05 §1,864.39
At March 31, 2024 e AT 15.43 32,26 T8, 167,64 6.03 13.30 T9.137.73
* Land
Deseription of item of property Grosscarrying  |Tifle dewds held [Whetler  title  deed  holder s & |Properly held |Reason  for
yalue in the pame of  |promoter, divector or relative ol |since mot  heing
1% luhhs) promoter | direclor or emploves of held in the
promoter § divecior nime of (he
Company
|Land R23.31 JGFPL Mo Wear Wik-22 MA
Laml 77.56 JGFPL Ma Year 2022-23 A
(i), Tmtnmpible nsweds
Soliware Total
Gross block
At April 0], 2022 6,72 672
Auldivions dusing the vear
Dispoeals doring, the year - -
At March 31, 2023 6.72 .72
Aulelitions curing the year =
DLisposals during, the year -
At March 31, 2024 672 672
Depreciation’ Amortisation
A Aprdl 01, 2022 03 103
Chirge frr the year 212 12
Dispusals - -
Al March 31, 2022 4.15 4.15
Charge for the year rm i
Mispusuls - -
Al March 31, 2024 (A LA L]
Met Tilock
At March 31, 2023 257 .57
At March 310, 2024 0.56 .56
i, Wight of use asseis*
Particnlars Lensehall Building on least Tatal
Land
As ol April 1, 2022 1,197.497 3040 1,137.46
A_dﬂu'om luring: the vear 1, 76745 - 1, 76795
Depreciutivn for e year [LENF] [15.46) [10%.18H)
Halance as at harch 31, 2023 287220 24.03 180013
Additions during flie year 3T 2 E
Dispaosnl during e year {81.33) [24.05] [1017.56)
Depreciation for the year (he.ov - (11907
Balance s 3 March 31, 2024 268097 - 2450.07 %

* Tight-oftuse asscts: Belor Mote 38 for disclosres.
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5. Mon Current Fhanelal Asset
Revurity depusit

Tatal

6. Deferred tax assed! (Habillty) (neth
{n) Components of Delerred tax assed | (Hablbey) (met)

Delerred lax assel:

Mareh 31, 2024 March :]lI k3

5203

232.03

H1.03

13103

March 31, 20124

Murch 31, 1023

Troveision for ciploves benefiis AGT 431
Lease Lisbility IH2.TH 1803
Dieconunissioning Liahility 14558 201,41
Tierivntive linhility med Resintement of capital creditees 41,58 40,30
Tinahsorhed deprecintion® 8,502,006 SAT31H
Gross deferred tax asset (A) 9,032 HE 5.497.23
Delerved tax Habilty:
Caaly Mow hedpe reserve .00
Neprecintion an prapery, plant ad cyugpacnl RO43.00 051210
Fadr vale of investment amd lonancial instnunents at amortised cost 140 -
Iighl o use Esscls 46160 ARG
LTL o cquity componciit a3 per Ind A5 109 25345 25345
ElR. Adjustment of Borrowings GG GO LS
Crogs deferred fnx linbility (B) HHZ6.73 5,870,032
Nel Deferred Gax asaets S (labliy) (A-B) 20615 126,31
{Ish Ieconeiliation of deferred tax assces [ (Nability) : Marel 31, 2024 March 31, 2013
Oypening balance 12031 {177.96)
Tax incomefiexpense) during the year recopmised in saleowal profit and loss BO.43 ATRA1
Tax incomeiexpenss) during the year recogmised in (0] (0,58} (4.4 )
Tax eapense on equity component as per e A% 109 - {9.91)
Closing balnnoe ps nt 31 March PN 126.31
{ch Movement in deferred tax asscts | (Habilieyh
Movement o deferred assets | (linhility) for corrend year ended March 31, 2024 {7 i lukhs)
April 1, 2023 Recopndsed in Reeopnivesd Recognived in March 31, 2024
. Other in Reserve profil and ligs
Particulars 3
Coamprehensive anil Surpluz
Income
Asgeis
Provision for employss henefits 431 [0.47) 495 42
[Lenss Linhility NE8.03 = 4.71 2824
Necammissioming Linhility 20141 [5.53) 195.848
Derivative linbility 40,30 128 4758
Lnubsorbed depreciationg® 347318 - 3028 88 8,502,084
599723 [ILBT) A036.32 9 h32,EH
Liability
Cach flow hedpe resenee LT (1) - -
Froperty, plant and equipment, investmenl property - degreciation 505121 - 209145 =,043 66
Fir vnle of investment amd Tinencial mstnogenls a0 amonised cost - LAl (1]
Right b use nssets 406,09 {35.30) 44160
Faquity compuonent as per livd AS 109 25345 - Fa%45
Bl Adpustoment of Bossewings Gt IR G g (254} fidi, 652
S MHTILYZ (0.0 - 2,085,020 HE26.73
Mt Deferred tnx nssets { {Ealsiliy) 126,31 {058 - Ho.43 .15
Muventent in deferred assets ! (liablity) for current year enided March 31, 2023 (¥ im Inkhs)
April 1, 2022 Hecopnised In Recopnised | Reeognised in Muarch 31, TUI3
Other in Reserve prodit nad Inss
Partlculars Comprehensive | and Surplus
Income
Assels
Uil Mo luedges seserve 6558 [B5.07) = 0.0 -
Provision for cmaployee benefits 1.23 - 308 431
Lease Lisbility - = 2TR.03 2TH.UZ
Decommissioning Linbility - - 2041 20141
eerivative linhilily - - 40,30 40,30
1mahsarhed depreciativa® - - - 547518 547308
(558 (Bd.A4) - 5000609 5.997.23
Linhitity
Cash flow ledpe reserve = by 49 L.
Property, plant and equipment, investinent property - deprociation - - 505121 5,051.21
Ripht 10 nse sssels o - 490,99 400,50
ity comrpanent as per nd A5 109 24354 - LR - 253,45
EIR Auljusstivent ol Barrowings o = - 618 69,18
43,54 - 2.0 561747 5 R70.92
et Deferred tax nssets / (liahilily) {177.94) {64.44) {9.81) ATR.A1 126.31

*The Company hns unshsorbe:d depreciution o INK 4954557 Lakha (Mach 31, 2023: INR 31L885.00 Lakhs). The wabscrbed doprecintion will be available far offseting againi
fature tnanble profits of te Company. The Compaiy has recopnised defermed i assees (on unsbsorbed deprociation) of [NR 8,502,072 Lakhs (Mach 31, 2023: INR S ATL1H Lakhs)
wtilisntion o which is dependent on futuse profits, The fumre naabls profits re hased an projeetions nade by managsnent considering the long tenn power purchis: agrocimcal wi

MUYWET [T LT




JUNITER GREEXN FIELD MRIVATE LIMITER

CIM- U200 T 501

Mntcs to financial stalements for the year emded March 31, 2024
LA srrounls s shatad w & lekhs, unless oiherwiss stated)

Particul Asat Axnt
iR Murch 31,2084 March 31, 2023
T Mo currend Gax assels (wel)
Advance income lax [net of provison for lax T Nil (March 31, 2023 Mil)) 1287 133.04
Tidal 1247 1380
B Oiler won-current asseds {Unseenred, consldered gond unless ntherndse stated)
Prepaid capesses .20 .45
Asset in transit® - 536l
Todal .20 .06
*Bepresents Assets parchased in March 2023 ca CFR basis Bal was reocived in Aped 2023,
9 Corrent financlal nssed
Secuiily deposts 192.01 11541
Todul 182.01 118.41
1 Investments
Cranted Mutual Fumls {measured ul fair vabae through profit amd Joss)
Aditya Birla Sam Lale Overnipht Fussd-Daect Plas 230 -
[ 124 308 units {March 31, 20232 Mil uniis)]
Toadal 220320 =
Azprvgale book value and markel vabue 6l udguoted myestimenls 7 =
Agpregate markes valie of quated investimenis 2,200.5) -
Aggregate ameast of impairment in value of investmens . -
11 Trade Receivables
Trade receivables cupsidored puod - Stcured =
Treds peceivables considered pood - Unseoared 151745 1,803,231
Todul 1,517A45 1,403.13
Trade recivables are non inleres! bearing ad se penerally on lenns of e 240 days,
Trade Reccivahies Ageing Schedule
As ut 3 March 204
Dutstandlnp for fallowing perinds from due dote of peyment
TMarliculars Unbilled Current bal  Less than & & meaths — Riore than -
12 % 2-3 years Tidal
Hevenue  not Diae Mantng 1 yenr i i 3 years
Undlisputed trade receivables
~Considersd pond® 100115 91572 588.58 - - - 251745
Which have significan! increase in credit risk = = - - - - -
Total trude receivaliles 1,103.15 ST 5,58 - = . 151745
Lasa: Leas allowanees -
Tuwlal 10018 G187 S08.5R - - - 251745
e are no disped eade reccivables, Henee, the smne bas not been disciosed in the ageing Schedule.
As al 31 March 2023
Catstanding for following periods frem dwe dute of paymenl
Particnlars Unbilled  Curvent but Less than & & mamibs — Inre than
- ¥ Todal
Hevemng nat e Mannths | year 1-2 yenrs ) yes l}'&n
Uil puted trade receivalides
Considered gnnd® E79.55 Y2168 - - 1,803.23
Which have significan! Ecreas: in crodil risk - - - - =
Tetal trade receivables 70,55 S2LER - . - 1,803,323
Less: Loss allnwences =
Tutal E70.55 91168 - - - - LAY
*There are nn dispated imde receivahles. Hence, the same bas rot been disclosed im the apeing Schedule.
12 Cash and cash equivalints
Balances with hanks:
- Un currint scvounls Xzl 5350
- Chegees [ 10D in himed - I8
- Finod Diposits with Bank [with original maturity of bess thes 3 months) - 150300
Tatal 12281 156450
13 iher bask balamces.
- Fined deposils with remaining maturily of kss than 12 meaths 120,00 5
- Finad deposits with ressning manuity of kss than 12 mosths* T30 1154, 10
Tl 215136 1,158 10

*Dhposts ang miba len s por s of contractual armangemests, bur are readily accessitle by the Campany, on demand,




JUNIPER GREEM FIELD FRIVATE LIMITEDR

CIN- V40100 200P T 385G01)

%ates in flmnncial stntements For G year caded March 31, 2024
{All amounts me stetcd in € lakhs, unless athernvise stated)

As At Axal

Particniars nnrch 31, 2024 March 31, 2028

et debl recenciliation
This sectian sets o analysis ofnet debt aml e wevement i net debt for each of the paiod peesented
Met debit as on 31 Alarch 2024

Opealng Fair vobae
" =l Commitment  sdjustment (Other

PackiBiibicy Rlarch 31, Cusli Flans during the year ltlil':ﬂ Cash Flow) ! it el o

23 ithers
W vurzent - Boerowings (including current maturily vl log ten debi) EFNELE {SE0.T9) - 14.53 THLEIRDS
Curres - Bamowings 38926 LRI ] - kiU 10007
[ ease Liskibties 1, i 52 (0580 20.37 .65 159005
T'dal Horrawdng (A} TLTI5.66 {I,ﬁ'@ 20.37 U, 34 T6,SI06T
Less:
Cash and cpsh eqanalens {1,564.54) 1,441.51 - - {IX2EL)
Mel cash & eash cqulvalene (B} {0, 564.54) 1,4410.50 - - {IXLA1
Met Dbt [A4- B TH,151,12 (169 18) a7 [T TEADT. B
Mel lelsl 2 o 31 March 2025

Dpﬂilﬁ Fair valar

a5t . = Comumilment  adjustment {Other
chotivnald March 31, 7 ™ giriag the year  than Cush 'l'{?uwH Mirel 4 242

22 Otliers
e current - Borrowings {meluding coment mairiies) 1863720 A3,115.07 - ELFEE] 7213188
Current - Boarowmys 14,230.72  (I0961.65) - f25.1% LR IR R
Leasi: Liskelities £14.38 {1 ER) 1,767.05 114.07 | fid6 sz
Tutul Borrowing (A) RENS PN 4114364 1,707,495 1,121.71 7T, 715686
Less:
Cash and cash eguivalenls {1,605.58) iolad E (1,554.54)
Ned ensh & cnsh equivalent (B) 1,805, 58} Ani.44 - - {1.564.54)
Med Dbt [A- H) 3181638 41,4454 1,767.95 1,121,711 e 15112

14 (Hher enrrent Anonciol @ssels

{Ungecured, consldered gnod unbess vilierwise stated)
Interest accrued v fixed depuosis 025 1l
Insurance clsm recnalde - 1541
Dherivative assets® - 0.51
Hezeivable from related patics {pelion nole 33} 425 5.2
Inberest avemwed vn secunity depasils 4.71 117
“Fotal a.21 2510

e ivative instnaments ot Tair value tkroush 001 reflect the positive change in fz value of fereign exchange Sorwand cuntracts, designied as cash flnw hedges 1o hrodge Dighly probatie farecast payments
fior procurement of progerty, plas & equipment by the Company in forcign curency.

L5 Dther currend assels
(Unsgcured, eonsldered gond unless uilerwise stated)

Prepaid e 4%.05 LoiR G
Oiber advanees [nchiding ndvance to employes) 13.03 pobel ]
Halance with grvemment aulkerity 1332 E.14

Talal 74,40 47.57




JUNIFER GREEN FIELD PRIVATE LIMITER

CIN- U40100DL202OPTC 3563

Mutes (o financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are stated in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

6. Equity share capifal

As at Asal

Parti
miean March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Anthorived share capital:
Kaquity share capltal

7,500,006 ( March 31, 2023: 107,500,000) equily shares of Re. 10- cach 10750000 10, 7340.00
10,750.00 11, 75000

Tssued, subseribed amd fully pald-up share capital:
107, 370,000 { March 31, 2023 107 370,000) cquity shares of Bs. 100 ech 10,737.00 10,737.00
— 10,737.00 10,737.00

A. Reconcilintion of no. of equity shares

Issmed, subzeribed and fully paid-op share eapifal Mu ol shares Amount
As at Aprll 01, 2022 9.593,70.000 G,.937.00
Inereased during the year R0 RO0.00
At Murch 31, 2023 10,737,000 10,737.00
Increascd during the year = -
At March 31, 2024 10,73, 70,000 10, 737.00

B. TermsMights attached to shares

Terms/Rights atlached o equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares havingr i par value of Ra. 10~ per share. Each belder of equity sharcs is entitled 1o one volde per slare. Tn the cvent of
Hquiskation of fhe Company, the holders of equily shares will be entitled to reveive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amoums, The
distribution will be in proportion to the muaber of equity shares held by the shareliolders.

. Shares held by holding company
Ot of equily shares issued by the Company, shares hebd by its holding company are as below:

Particulirs March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
107,370,000 { Marel 21, 2023: 107,370,000) equity shares of Ra. 10~ cach held by Juniper Green Funergy Private Limited, the
liolling company and its nominse 10, 737.00 10,737.00

13, Detalls of sharcholders hildings more than 5% shares
Name of the sharchobler Number of shures Percentage of  Number of shares PPercentage of
el holding helid holding
March 31, 2024 Murch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023

Erqulty sharcs of Rs 10 vach Fully paid
Tuniper Cireen Energy Private Limited, the holding company and its nominee 10,7370, 100,00 10,73.70,000 100 0H%5

As per records of the Company, inclading itz register of shareholders/members and other declaration received froan shareloldess regarding beneficial imterest, (he above

sharcholding represent huth legal and beneficial ownership of shares,

E, Deiails of Equity shares beld by promoters
As at March 31, 2024

Promuter Name Muo. of shares at Change during No.ofshares at %0 of fofal shares % change during
the beginning of ihe year the end of the year the year
(e year
Jumiper Green Enerry Privide Lisiled and its nomines 10,73.70,000 " 10,73,70,000 FO0,06 -

As al Mareh 31, 2023

Pramoter Name Wi, of shares at  Change during Mo, of sharesat % of total shares % change during
the beginning of the periad the end of the year the perlod
the year
Jumiper Green Energy Private Limited sl i1z seaninee 993, 70,000 S0, 0000 10,73, 70,000 10000

¥, Tl Company hus not issued any shares pursuant to a contract withont pigment being received in cash in the cument vear and preceeding five years. The Company las not
issucd any bonus shimes nor Bas there Been any buy back in curment year and precceding five years.

17. iher equity March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

(a) Retained enrnings*

Opening (2.912.36) [282.72)
Add : Met (lossh Tor e year (60361} {2,623.68)
Add ; Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax 31.26 [5.496)
Mel surplus in statement of profil and loss (3.514.71) (2.912.36)

(b Other Comprehensive Tncome**

Opening 0.44 (11661
Addd: Cash flow hedyre reseree, net of lax - 0.44
Add: Beversal of cash flow hedpge reserve, net of fax (04443 31661
Tulal - 1,44

() Equity component ws per Tnd AS 109

Opening, el - y 1,223.52 1,175.69
Add: Adjustment on aveoun of equily compencnt as per Ind AS, 109 {net of tax) "\\' e} - 4783
Total \x 1223.52 1,123.52

1,101.19) 1688 410

HER Y AR
Tutnl Other Equity (a+h+c) 2\ d |

\ - _F___.' N
*Feetained earming reler o e net profit{loss) retined by the Company for it business sctivities

*4(ther Commprelensive income comprises of remensursment uf!uadgihg [CECIVE.



JUNIPER GEREENR FIELD FRIVATE LIMITED

CAM- LN 2020FTT IE5633

Motes to Anancial statements for the year ended March 20, 2024
LA soounts are siated in £ Inkhs, unless othervize stated)

— Asal Asnl
i Murch 31,2084 Blareh 31, 2023
13 Homrowings
Secured
Tema Laonn fram Financial Inst#utions* 10,404, 55 62,1308
Unzeenreil
Lty counpunent 25 por Ind AR 108 of Qpeinnally Canvertible Debonbeses (OCD0™ (el nete 35) 1031400 11,04 07
Laan froen halding compaeg*** 1407000 -
Amuunt disclosd under s bepd "enrrent harmowings® {2,726.31) (1,080,707
Tatal 69, 152,64 T AR, 0
Mntc*

Bepreseans ters bam availed from Power Feanve Corpurativa (“FFUT in INK specificnlly for the puspase of setting up 150 MW salr pawer projest in Mahssashin which carries fixed inlerest
rate nf B.50%% slarting Som August 1502022 10 July 14, 2025 The term [oan s repayble over 2 tenure of 18 yoars b wenthly insiallments stanting, from 14 Augest 2025 and aufing on 14 July
20401 The term loan is saeured by

(i) Exclusive First Charge by way of Mo gage over:

- all the immovable propertics. includng any leaschobd vghts, i oy, both present and fubare;

- &l tanginle muvable assets, mehudmge woveable plam ped machinery, machinery spares, equipmenl, wols ad accessodies, Rumiture, fixtares., vehicles and all other movablc asscls widiea
satuatod, buth prose and fiture;

- all intangible amsets meluding gowdwill, Belleciial propery rights, undenaking and uncalled capital, bolk presen and fuluire;

- all U Currenl Assls, ichidag b nos limited e, honk debis, pperating cash lvws, Roeenaldes, cosimissinns, reverses of whalsoever mbure and whesover ssising., both present and fiture;

- alll accounts including. (b Tt and Ketention Account and the Sub-Acvounts). the DERA o pny sccaunt cremed for any reserve o be crcated and meinbemal {or any peeaunt in
sulstitutasn thereafl, o any of the Praject Documents er olher secounts of the Horeawer and all funds from Gme Lo time deposited thecs, the Recsivables and all Permitted Investments o
cdher securities representing all mmounts coedited o e Trist and Resentinn Accoam;

() assigmmenl {10 W eaent permitved under the AppBeable Laws) ol

- all U rights, tites, inlcrests, benefits, clnims and demands whatsoever in the Project Ducusiistis’ Conlmacie [inchuding bert nnt limited to Pover Purchuse Agrovmont(s) mavcaandium of
alerstamrding, pockegs’ consimction contracts, D&M relabod agrocmeets, savios contaeis, Insurance coniracts & Trsurance provocds amd all vihes Conlsacigl;

- all th sigins, tithes, dnlcrests, benefits, chims and demasds in, to and under all the Clearaness selating 10 the Project;

- all 1k rights, titles, interases, licenses, benefits, clams and danands in sy leiter of credits, puaranee, liquidated damages, pafonuance bosd and corporse gaarntee, hank puarastee (if
agreed by the issuing besksh) or any vtler secwily provided ¢ 1o he provided to the Dosrower by any party under the Prajeet Docaments £ Comraces; and

{iip pikoadize of spcvified pereantage of Fquity Skares and Quasi Cyuily. both prescol and fulsre, heid by the Fladges.

{ivh am irremcahle and eeconditional Corporate Guaantes from the holding compasy for the purpose of repaymail payaoit of Secwred Ohbligacions and that shall be released afier compliani
af cerlain conditions.

4 Represants subscription bo COD by the Hokdig Coanpeey which are convertile it Cquity shares ot U oplan of (5 Hobling Comqany er redeemable 2t the option of ke Company on o6
becfisre March 21, 2042 in accordance with the comditines of the OCD Subseriplion Agracnent. Mo interest shall acerue or charged or become due or payable 18 Jue 3, 2023 or ane yerr from
Profecl Cammencinl Cperating Dase (OOTF) or first pavment of mstalbsent of Term Lopn Facility, whichever is later. [n sccordancs wills INIY A% 008, such 013 were separated inko Eability
nndl equity componen, Touity compeoal s been ¢lassified under Ciher Fquicy (refer note 17) ad lisbility componen weder son-cament borrowings. Enterest on liability cumponva is
recugnised wsing U cllizetive inleress method

408 Renresents unsceurcd s lion the Holding Company which is repayable on or before March 31, 2042 with interest rate of 8.45% per ammum (0.05% lewer Lsan U appidbeatds inerest mie
e A koan Facility prowided by the project lenders).

19 Meovisions
Mom-carrent
Pravision lor Gralwily [refer pode 57) 11,86 ez
Iecommissinaing liahility (refer sote 33 B{gh} 157.83 24T
Total 18569 36165
X Bnrrowings
Heonred
Tuyers credit® IE69.07 240,30
Loz fronm Budiding vomgainy ™ 135,000 (AR
Currest ialurites of Inng temm harmowings 2020410 1.&50.79
Tutul S70,38 SSIR0S

MRepresints Buyers Credil avniled by the Company (secused apsim e Letier of eredit issned by Indusind Bank Limited) fom Stale Bauk of India, Iaael pied Bank of Indin, MeaYork
repayahie oo gl 15, 2024 amd My 22, 2034 with interest sate of 5. 735% nnd 5.75% per annum respeciively.

™ Roppeses wosecired loan from the Holding Company which is repsyable within ane year suhject to lender’s approval with inlcrest cate of 8.45% por annnm,

21 Trale payables
- Tl entstnmding does of micre and small culerprzes (ool nose 34) 3825 2754
- Tutel outstanding does of erediters other than micro and small coterprises (relir note 33 for dues of related party) — 14141 R3.1E
Tadal 170146 11292

“Trpcde paynhles are nns-inberes) bearing and are nornslly scubed U090 days renms
Irnde Payahlcs Ageing Schedule

As al 31 Mareh 2024

Dutstanding lor Fellowing perieds from dae date of prynient

TMarticukars Less than

Linbdlled I-2 yeurs  I-3years  Maore tian 3 vears “I'ntal

1 year
Tednl nuestanding dues of micro ez anl wrall colerprises - Hahl LEd - M2
Todal uutstambng duvs of creditors other thes micrn enterprises md small vapeisc: Al .61 297 093 - 14141
Total 57,41 10722 4461 0.92 - 13016
*There are nu disputeed trade pryables, Hesee, the snme has not been disclosed in tre apeing Schedule
As al 31 March 2023

0 ling For fullowing periods from due date of payment
Furieutars Linhlikd Licks fhiam I-lyears -3 years  More lban 3 years Tdal

1 year
“Tatal caristending dues of micrn enterprises aad small culorpriscs = 2154 - =
Tatal clstanding dues of creditues other than micro eomerpeises and small enlerprises 54.38 il - :
‘Tntal - S84 - =

#There are no disprted trade 3. Henv, W sapee have nal been dischosed in the ageing Schuedule.
i TR e i

Vi 1 —~l 8




JUNIFER GREEN FIELD PRIVATE LIMITEDR
CIN- U0 UDDL I TUIER633
Mndes tn financial statements far the year ended March 31, 2024

LAl are slaled in T lakhs, unless cdhernise stated)
Asaf Asal
Parflisiers March 31,2004 March 3, 2023
23 tHher ewrvent financlal Habillthes
Payable for purchase ofpmn}'.p}uumdtquipmm {includis IMR 10102 kakhs (March 31, 2023: IMR 427.35 Lakbs) 339,30 | Do ga
paysties to ko and small catcrprises telen nole 34) i !
Beteation money payehle (inclides IMR 275,10 lkka (March 30, 2023 INK 73292 Lakba) prgables 1o micra and small
2 502.1% 1.014.64
enlemrises refer pode 34)
[nlerest averued but nol dug on e loan 241.00 247.55
Imlerest averued but nol due oo buvers crodit o633 41
Totercst acerued bt not dus on DU fram hobding company 40368 -
Imerest aceried bat nat doe on lnan frnm kalding company HE.0T 153.24
Payable 1o related partics {refer noke 35) A T AR
Eutplaye: related Baladlives o0% TR0
Total [N L7L34
I3 (Mher current linhilitics
Statstory ducs G4 57.82
Tzl 67,4l 5743
24 Fravisions
Current
Provisinn for cnmpensated sbeences 1.06 I8
Provisive for Gratuity {eelior mole 37) 14 05
Tatal 7.20 11.89




JUNIPER GREEN FIELD PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN- 140 IHIDL2020F T 359633

Motes fo linpncial statements for the yeur ended Marcch 31, 2024
Al anounts are stated in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated )

Farticulars

Fur the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

15

I

27

Fi ]

19

Revenue from sperativns

Revenne from contrucls with customers
Rale nf power

Sale ol volunary emission reductions (VERs)
Taotal

Chileer income
Twlerest Income on
Fixed deposits
Securily deposits
Income tux refund
Profit on redemption of mutwal fnd
Met pain on invesiment in mutual fund measured at fivir value throwgh profit and lnss
Miscellancous income
Tatal

Employee benclit expenses

Ralarics, wages and bonus

Gratuity cxpenses

Coan pensated ahscnecs

Contnbution ko provident and other funds
Stafl welfure eapenses

Tutal

Finanee cosi

Interest o loan [roan linancial institution

Interest on buyers credil

Tnterest expenses on lease Habilities

Imerest expenses on decommissicning lalilitics

Interest on OCTS from holding compuny™®

Interest on Joan from holding company

Other borrowing Gosl (hank guarantes, hedping cosl and ofher charges)
Tutal

10,366.03 541858
73.03 -
10,439.08 5,938.58
28,70 1,053.24
5.23 307
5.24 -
5316 2,79
£.13 -
5,94 141
L1045 106101
15541 B12.36
6. 14 323
. 22.39
1148 IR.62
44.63 61.35
220,66 737.95
5,297.26 167940
163,46 506,95
137,16 al,14
28,10 2180
5846 77930
55,31 0.2
57.37 B7R.31
6,597.12 5.977.16_

*Includes interest en uptionally eonvertible debentures (OCDS) from holding company using effective interest rate methnd as per Ind AS 109; INKE 309,93

lakhs (March 31, 2023: INK 779,30 lakhs)

Depreciation and amortization expense

Dgpreciation of property plant and equipment (Refor note 3)
Amorlization of intangible assets (Reler nole 3)
Drepreciation of Right-ofuse assets (Refir nole 4)

Less: Capitulised during the wear

Totnl

Other expenses

Flectricity charpges

Travelling and conveyane
Insurance expenss

Security cxpenses

Hates & taxcs

Iepal and professional expenses
Operational and mainlenance cxpenscs
Liquidated dampes charges

NEM and forccasting churpes
Payment to audilers (Nole - 1)
OHTiee expenses

Conmimunicatinn cxpenses

Tent expenses

Business suppedl scrvices

VER issnance cxpenses

(SR cxpenditure (Note - 2}
Suhscription and membership fee
Luss on disposal of property plant and equipment
Loss on lermination of lease
Mizscelluneous expenses

Totul

3IB6.05 2,445.94
201 2.12
107 105,18
5 {30,73)
3,507.13 _ 252651
135,54 L1636
61,60 95.75
126.95 0360
139.51 HU.56
54.37 65.27
35.60 50,95
133.64 5207
- 3T
£2.05 34,00
10,60 10
- 0.4
4,58 .60
72.12 587
.77 £
2445 =
1.40 .
2.92 4,82
2716
11.05 -
2846 6.9
01066 Tilh 26
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For the yenr emded

Faor the year ended

3l

Pl March 31, 3024 Mureh 31, 2023

Mote - |
Fayment to anditors comprises fee (Inclosive of GST)
Audil foe 443 563
Tax andit fec 177 1.22
In other capacily
C¥ther services {group reporling, ecrtification and others) 4.40 4.15
Tutul 1,60 1110
Mote - 2
Details of TSR expenditure
1) Ciross amount reguired 10 he spent by the Company during the year -
b} Amount spent in cash dwring the year on

i} Constroctionfacguisition of any assct - =

i} Ol purposes other thun (1) sbove 1.5Kh

) Details related 1o unspent obligutions:
i) Construction/scyuisition f any asset
i} Om purposes ether (ban (1) ahove

Excess amount spent under section 135(5)

Amount required

Opening Balance to he spent during

Amount spend
durlng the year

Closing Balance

the year

- 3 1.94 (1.50]
Tncomie tax Cxprnscs
{n) Income tax expense reported in (e statement of profit or loss conprises:
Currcnt tox - 3
Tocferred tax expense [RL.43) (378610
Income fnx expense reported in the sintement of profit and loss (80.43) [378.61)
(b) Stutement of Other Comprehensive Inceme
Met (rain) ¢ loss on revaluation of cash flow hedpes (0.05) H5.0T
Met (gain} on remessurement of defined henetit pluns .67 {1.23}
Tuotal .58 bd.44
() Reconvilintion of tax expenses and the aceonnting profit multiplicd by Indin's domestic tax rate :
Aceounting profit{loss) befere income tax (686.04) (3.002.29
Applicalle statutory income tnx rife 17.16% 17.16%,
‘Tax us per applicable statutory income (ax vate (117.72) [515,1%)
Adjustments for ¢
Adjustment of tax relating lo earlicr years (1.74] =
Lizpenses not allewed under Income Tax Aet / allowable on paymenl basis .03 1 3,58
Income tux expense reported In the statement of profit and loss (B.43) {378.61)

The tux rate wsed for e year 2023-24 and 2022-23 is the Corporate tux rale of 17,16% payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profils under

Section 115 BAL of the Income Tax Act 1961,
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32. Earnings Per Share (EPS):

L]

The following data reflects the inputs to calculation of basics and diluted EP'S:

Hasic earnings per share is caleulated by dividing the nel profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpese of caleulating diluted carnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
sharehiolders and the weighted average number of sharcs outstanding during the year are adjusted lor Lhe effects of all
dilutive polential equily shares, if any.

Particulars March 31, -2-1_}24 March 31, 2023
Met (loss) as per statement of profit and loss for caleulation of basie
EPS and dilutive EPS ffi3.61) (26%3.5)
E:gghled average number of cquily shares for caleulating basic/diluted 10,73,70,000 10,39,06.986
Nominal value per share () ) 10,00 10.00
Basic & Diluted earnings per share () ) (0.56) {2.53)

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimales and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment o the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
s Capital management (Refer note - 40)

= Financial risk management objectives and policies (Refer note - 42)

= Sensitivity analysis disclosures (Refer note - 42)

A Judgments
In the process of applying lhe Company accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which have
the most significant ellect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with rencwal and termination options — Company as a lessee:

The Company delermines the leasc term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, ogether with any periods covered by an
aption to extend the lease if it is reasonably cerfain to be excreised, or any periods covered by an option to terminale the
lease, il il is reasonably certain not lo be exercised,

The Company has scveral lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement
in evaluating whether it is rcasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminale the lease. That
is, it considers all relevant faclors that create an cconomic incentive for it to exercise cither the renewal or termination.
Afler the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a signilicant event or change in
circumstances thal is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to rencw or to
terminate (e.g., construction of significant leaschold improvements or significant cuslomization to the leascd asset). Reler
to Note 39 for information on potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of extension
and termination options that are not included in the lease term,
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B. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a malerial adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Exisling circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur,

a) Impairment of non-financial asseis
The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of asscts requires assessment of several external and internal
factors which could result in deterioration ol recoverable amount of the assels,

b) Taxes:
Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an asscssment
of the probability of the [ulure taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

¢)  Defined benefits plan (Gratuity)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rales. Due to the
complexity of the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions, All assumptions arc reviewed al each reporting date.

d) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheel cannot be measured based
on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markels where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree ol
judgment is required in establishing fair values.

Assumptions include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions
about these Tactors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

e) Useful lile of property, plant and equipment

The Company uses its technical expert along with historical and industry trends for detaining the economic life of an
assel. ‘The useful life is reviewed by management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of revision, the
unamoriized depreciable amount is charged over the remaining uscful life of the assets.

[} Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicil in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing
rate (TBR) to measure lease liabilities. The TBR is the rale of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over
a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an assel ol a similar value to the right-of-use assel
in a similar cconomic environment. The TBR therelore reflects what the Company “would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available. The Company cstimales the 1BR as rate at which the borrowing is
availed during the vear / period.

T'he key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncerlainly at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, arc described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared, Existing circumslances and assumptions aboutl [uture developments, however, may change due
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to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they oceur,

g) Provision for decommissioning

As part of the identification and measurement of assets and liabilities for the commissioned 150 MW solar project in
Maharashtra, the Company has recognized a provision amounting to TNR 357.83 lakhs (March 31, 2022: 329.73 lakhs)
for decommissioning obligations associated with projects constructed on frechold land. In determining the fair value of
the provision, assumplions and estimates arc made in relation to discount rates, inflation, the expected cost to dismantle
and remove the plant from the site and the expected timing of those costs. The Company estimates that the costs would
be realized upon the expiration of the PPA’s term, The provision is based upon current cost cstimales and has been
determined on a discounted basis by using incremental rate of long borrowing and rate of inflation basis on industry
practice. The timing and amount of lulure expenditures arc reviewed annually, together with rale of inflation for
escalation of current cost estimates and the interest rate used in discounting the cash flows.

34, The Micro and Small Enterprises have been identified by management from the available information, which has been
relied upon by the auditors. On the basis of the information and records available with the management, outstanding dues
to the Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are as follows.

Particulars | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
lhe I{r"lc'l‘-'ﬂ] amount and the interest due ﬂ:u:n:un remaining unpaid to any 404,37 1,187.72
supplier as at the end of each accounting period

Principal amount due to micro and small cnterprises 404.37 1,187.72
Interest due on above® il Nil

The amount ol interest paid by the buyer in lerms of section 16 of the MEMED
Act 2008 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond Nil Mil
the appointed day during each accounting pericd _

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the Mil Mil
period) but without adding the interest specified under the MEMLED Act 2006.
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each

: ; Nil Mil
accounting period i
The amount of further interest remaining duc and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above arc actually Nil Nil

paid 1o the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under seclion 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

* The amount of principal and interest is not due to Micro and Small Enterprises vendors as per the terms of the agreement
entered inlo with such vendors.
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35, Related Party Transactions
A)  Name of related parties and related parties relationship
Relationship with the Company Names of Related Parties ]
Holding company Juniper Green Energy Private Timited

Iellow subsidiary {With whom transaction
have taken place)

Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited

| Juniper Green Three Private Limited

Misagra Renewable Energy Private Limited

Juniper Green Gem Privale Limited

Juniper Green Beam Privale Limited

Juniper Green Stellar Private Limiled

Tuniper Green Cosmic Private Limited

Juniper Green Beta Private Limited

Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited

Juniper Green Gamma One anat:: Limiled

Key management personnel

Naresh Mansukhani, Director

Parag Agrawal, Direclor

Prashant Pandia, Company Secretary

B) Statement of Transactions with Related Parties during the year ended March 31, 2024

B Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Issue of Equity Shares

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited . 800,00

Issue of Optionally Convertible Debentures (*OCDs") _

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited (gross OCD issue amount Nil (March 31, - 1, 488.56

2023 ; INR 767.00 lakhs) with amount adjusled as per Ind AS 109: Nil (March

31, 2023 : (INR 721.56 lakhs)))

Intercompany Loan taken

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited 1,070.00 5,115.00
| Intercompany Loan repaid B .

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited 430.00 4.050.00

Interest Expense on Loan

Juniper Green Encrgy Privale Limited 55.31 20.26
Interest Expense on 0CDs e

Tuniper Green Energy Private Limiled 5448.53 -

Reimbursement of expenses

Juniper Green Encrzy Privale Limited - 186.48

Misagra Renewable Encrgy Private Limited (2.55) T.28

Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited (0.98) 9.60

Juniper Green Beam Private Limited 343 18.29

| Juniper Green Beta Private Limited 11.26 14.80

Juniper Green Power Five Privale Limited - 4,17 |

Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited - 23.63

Juniper Green Three Private Limited 0.24 (4.49)

Juniper Green Gem Privale Limited - 242
| Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited 541 -

Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limitled 14,03 -

Trade payables )

Juniper Green Encrgy Private Limited 7.77 -

Transler of materials |

Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limiled 17.86

*All related party transactions are at arm’s length and in the normal course of business.
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C) Balances Outstanding as at year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Intercompany issue of QCDs b
Juniper Green Encrgy Private Limiled (gross OCD issue amount TNR 10,314.00 10,314.00 10,004.07
lakhs (March 31, 2023 : INR 10,314.00 lakhs) less amount adjusted as per Ind

AS 109: Nil (March 31,2023 : TNR 309.93 lakhs)) =
Intercompany Loan Payable

Juniper Green Energy Privale Limited 5 1,205.00 1,065.00 |
Receivable/{Payable) for expenses

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited (186.49) (187.29)
Misapra Renewable Energy Private | imited (4.73) . (7.28)
Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited (8.62) (9.60)
Juniper Green Beam Private Limited (21.72) (18.29)
Tuniper Green Beta Private Limiled (26.06) {14.80)
Tuniper Green Power Vive Private I imitcd (417 | i4.17)
Tuniper Green Stellar Private Limited (23.63) {23.63) |
Juniper Green Three Private Limited 4.25 4.49
Juniper Green Gem Privale Limited (2.42) (2.42)
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited ) (5.41) -
Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited {19.03) -
Juniper Green Fncrb}r Private Limited - 0.80
Interest Payable on OCDs )

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited 493,68 -
Interest Payable on Loan

Juniper Green Energy Private Limiled 68,02 18.24
Payable lor business support services

Juniper Green Encrygy Private Limiled 7.11 -

1) Tuniper Green Energy Privale Limited has given a corporate guarantee [or borrowing availed by the company amounting

Lo INR 63,154.00 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 63,154 Lakhs).

Commitments and Contingency

Lease
Refer note 38 lor lease related commitments,

Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be exceuted on capital account and not provided for amounted (o INR 51,13 lakhs

as on March 31, 2024 (net off advances) (March 31, 2023: TNR 363 .46 Lakhs),

Contingent Liabilities not provided for as at March 31, 2024 Nil (March 31, 2023: Nil)

Employee Benefit

(a) Defined contribution plan

The Company makes contribution towards provident lund to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying
employees, The Company's contribution to the Employee Provident Fund is deposited with the Regional Provident Fund

Commissioner.

During the vear, the Company has recognized the following amounts under profit and loss / capitalized under capital work

in progress:
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Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Emplovers® contribution to Employee's provident Fand capitalized under 57 97
capital work in progress _ :

Employers® contribulion to Employee's provident Fund charged to profil 1148 ke

and loss

{b} Defined bencfit plan

Cratuity and other post-employment benefits

The Company has a defined benefil gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service
gets a gratuity on departure ai 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. These benelits are
unfunded, and Company provides for liability in its books of accounts based on the actuarial valuations.

Risks associated with Gratuity plan provisions
The Company is cxposcd to number of risks in the defined bencfit plans. Most signilicant risks pertaining to defined
benefit plans and management’s estimation of the impact of these risks are as follows:

Salary growth risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan parlicipans.
An inerease in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan liability,

Interest rate risk
A decrease in interest rate in future years will increase the plan liability,

Life expectancy risk

T'he present value of the defined benelit plan liability is caleulated by reference to the best estimate of mortality of plan
participants both during and at the end of the employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants
will increase the plan lability.

Withdrawals Risk
Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent
valuations can impacl the plan liability.

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss
account and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet,

Employee benefit expenses charged to profit and loss;

Particular March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Current service cost 3.84 10.41
Interest cost on benelil liability : 2.30 384
Actuarial(gain) / loss recognized in the year (3.93) 7.19
Benefit expense capitalized under capital work in progress - 11.02
Benefit expense charged to statement of profit and loss 6.14 3.23 |
Benefit expense recognized in statement of other comprehensive (3.93) 7.19
Income
Balance Sheet:
Particular i March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Prosent value of delined benefit obligation - 12.00 3197 |
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Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Present value of obligation as at ti:e_bugjllning 31.97 50.64
Current service cosl .84 1041
Tntercst cost - 2.30 3.84
Re-measurement of Actuarial (gain) / loss (3.93) 7.19
Acquisition/ Divestures! I'ransition (22.18) (40.11)
Present Value of Obligation as at the end 12.00 3197
Current Liability (Short term) 0.14 0.05
Non-Current Liability (Long term) 11.86 31.92

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligation for the Company’s plans are shown

helow:
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 |
Discount rate ] T.22% ] 1.53%
Adirition rate 5.00% 5.00%
Salary Escalation Rate B 10.00% 10.00%

The eslimates of future salary increasc, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniorily, promotion and

other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount faclors
arc determined close (o each year-end by reference to government bunds ol relevant economic markets and that have terms lo
maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on management’s historical

experience.

As the Company docs not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of delined benefit obligation and fair value of

plan assets has not been presented,

A quantitative sensitivily analysis for significant assumptions are as follows:

Partienlars N March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
1) Impact of the change in discount rate

Present value of obligation at the end of the year

a) Impact duc to increase of 1% (1.74) {4.07)
by Impact due to decrease of 1% - 2.16 4.95
2) Impact of the change in salary

Present value of obligation at the end of the year

a) Impact due to increase of 1% 1.83 398
b} Impact due to decrease of 1% 5 _(1.63) (3.31)
3) Impact of the change in atirition rate

Present value of obligation at the end of the year

a) Tmpact duc to increase ol 1% (0.63) (1.32)
b) Impact due to decreasc of 1% 0.74 1,48

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit
obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end ol the reporting period.

Sensitivitics due to mortality and withdrawal are not material and hence impact of change not calculated.
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The following paymenls are expected contributions to the defined benefil plan in uture years:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporling period) 0.4 = 0,05 |
Between 2 and 5 years i 0.53 0.24
Between 6 and 10 years . 0.61 4.29
| Beyond 10 years 3 10,72 27.39 |

Weighted average duration of Gratuity Plan — 17.44 years as on March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: 18.12 years).
38, Leases;

The Company has lease contracts [or land, properties and other assets used in its operations. These lease confracts
generally have lease term of 28 years.

The Company also has certain leases with lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The Company
applics the ‘short term lease’ and ‘low value asscts’ recognition exemplions lor these leases,

a)  Sel outl below are the carrying amounts of night-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars Leaschold Land Building Total
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1,197.97 39,49 1,237.46
Additions during the year T 1,767.95 - 1,767.95
Depreciation for the year 1T e (15.46) (109.18)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 ) 2,872.20 24.03 2,896.23
Additions during the year i 20.37 : 20.37
Disposals during the year (83.53) (24.03) (107.56)
Depreciation for the year T (119.07) - (119.07)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 2,689.97 : 2,689.07

h)  Sct out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars _ March 31, 2024 | March 31,2023
Balance as at the beginning of the year _ 1,686.52 81438
Addition during the year o 20.37 1,767.95
ﬁcc:‘eﬂgn of interests . 137.16 114.07
Lease larminatio]\ and athers R (96.51) -
Payments - (99,89 (1,009.88)
Balance as at the end of the year 1,647.65 1,686.52
Current - E.":??_
Mon-current 1,647.65 1,602.75

The maturity analysis of lcase liabilities is disclosed in Note 42.
The cffective interest rale lor lease liabilities is 8.75% with maturity in year 2050,
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The following are the amounts capitalized under Capital Work in Progress/ recognized in Profit and Toss:

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31,2023
Depreciation of right-of-use assels 119.07 109.18
Intercst expense on lease liabilities 137.16 114.07
Expensces related to shorl lerm leases 69,84 110.65 |
Total amount capilalised in Capital Work in progress/ .remguiz.eﬂ in Profit A26.07 R 333.90
and Loss:

The Company's total cash outflow for leases (including for short term and leases of low valuc assets) for the year ended
March 31, 2024 is TNR 16973 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 1,120.53 lakhs).

39, Segment Reporting:

The Company is engaged in business of sale of electricity, Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) reviews the financial
information of the Company as a whole for decision-making and accordingly the company has a single reportable scgment.
The sale of power has been billed (o a single customer, Further, the operations of the company are limited within one

geographical segment. Hence, no further disclosure is required to be made.

40, Capital management

For the purposc of capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other equily reserves attributable to
the equily holders. The primary objective of the Company capital management is to maximize the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in cconomic condilions and the
requitements of the financial covenants, 'l'o maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, refurn capital to sharcholders or issue new shares, The Company monitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt, The Company includes within net debt, loans and borrowings,

trade and other payables, less cash and cash cquivalents.

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings . 74,883.02 76,029.14
Add: Trade payables 17016 112.72
Add: Other current financial liabilities 1,210.02 2,761.24

| Less: Cash and cash equivalents 122,81 (1,564.54)
Net debts (A) 76,840.39 77,338.56
Sharcholders’ Funds (B) 8,445.81 9,048.60

| Capital and net debt (C=A+1) B 85,286.20 86,387.16 |
Gearing ratio (%) (D=A/C) 20.10%% 89.53%

1n order the achieve this overall objective, the capilal management of the Company, amongst ather things, aims lo ensure
that they meet financials convents atllached Lo interest -bearing loans and borrowings that define the capital structure

I’EﬂlliTBmEnt 5.
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41, Fair value and Fair Value hierarchy
a. Fair value
The following table shows the comparison by class ol the carrying amounts and [air value ol Company’s financial assets,
other than those with carrying amount thal are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Carrrylng Fair value Carrying Fair value
Particulars Valug A
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,

- - 2024 2024 2023 2023
Financial assets - -

Financial Assets measured at fair value through

0OCI s -

Derivative asscts - - 0.53 0.53
Financial asscts measured at fair value through

profit and loss e

Tnvestment in mutual fund — quoted 2.203.20 2,203.20 - -
Financial asscis measured at amortised cost 2

Trade receivables 2,517.45 2,517.45 1,803.23 1,803.23
Sceurity deposits 274,04 | 274.04 350.44 35044
Cash & cash equivalent 122.81 122.81 1,564.54 1,564.54
Other Bank Balances 252,36 25236 1L1s9.10 |  1,159.10
Other eurrent financial assets 9.21 9.2 29.10 29.10
Financial liahilities -

Financial liabilitics measured at amortised cost )
Trade Payable 170.16 170.16 11272 112.72
Other eurrent financial liabilities 1,910.02 1,910.02 2,761.24 2,761.24
Tease Liahilitics 1,647.65 1,647.65 _1,686.52 1,686.52
Borrowings 74,883.02 74 883.02 T6,029.14 76,029.14 |

The managemenl assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other current financial asscts, trade
payables, and other current financial liabilities except Forward Cantract Payable, paid approximate their carrying amounts
largely due Lo the shorl-lerm maturities of these instruments.

The fair valuc of financials assets and liabilities 15 included at the amount al which the instruments could be exchange in
a current transaction between willing parlies, other than in a [orced or liguidation sale. The following method and
assumplions were used Lo eslimale the [air value:

Quoted investment in mutual fund - The fair values of the mutual funds arc derived from quoted market prices in aclive
markets,
Other-The fair value of remaining financial instruments is determined by using discounted cash flow model.

Derivative Liabilities / Assets- For hedge related elfectiveness review and related valuation, details are presented in note
43,

b. Fair Yalue hierarchy

The judgement and estimates made in determining the fair value of the financial instruments that are (a) recognized at fair
value and (b) measured at amortized cost and for which fair value are disclosed in the financial stalements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classilied its (inancial
instruments into the three levels prescribed under accounting standard. An explanation of each level lollows under the
table.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statement are categorized with in
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on lowesl level input that is significant to the fair value measurement

as a whole:

Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market price in aclive markels for identical assets or liahilitics
Level 2 Valuation technique for which the Jowest level input that significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
Level 3 Valuation technique for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in

unobservable.
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liability as on March 31, 2024
- pQr:'::::?n Significant | Significant
Particulars : Total ; observable | unobservable
Valuation active i’ ) i
munilels inputs inputls
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial asseis
Assets for which fair values are
disclosed _ ~
Security deposits March 31, 2024 274.04 274.04 -
Financial assets measured at [air
value through OCI —
Derivate Assets March 31, 2024 < - &
Financial liabilities _
Liabilitics for which fair values
are disclosed
Borrowings MWarch 31, 2024 | 74,883.02 74, 883.02 -

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liability as on March 31, 2023

Quoted

Date of prices in Significant Significant
Particulars g Total F obscrvable unobservable
Valuation active : i

e P inputs inpuls

(Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)
Financial assels o |
Assets for which fair values are
disclozed
Security deposits March 31, 2023 350.44 350.44 -
Financial assets measured at fair
vilue through OCI ==
Derivate Asscts March 31, 2023 0.53 0.53 ) -
Financial linbilities
Liabilities for which fair values
are disclosed ~
Borrowings March 31, 2023 | 76,029.14 76,029 14 -

42, Financial risk management objective and policies
The Company principal financial liabilities comprisc loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to support the Company vperations. The Company principal financial asscts comprise, cash
and bank balance, other receivables that derive directly [rom its operations.
The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by a financial risk commitlee that advises
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on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The financial risk commitlee
provides assurance (o the Company's senior management that the Company’s financial risk activitics are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company’s policies and risk objectives. Tt is the Company s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculalive purposes
may be undertaken, The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are
summarized below.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will nol meet ils obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading 1o a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from their operating activilies (primarily trade
receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and other linancial instruments,

The Company assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categories arrived on the basis of
assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets, Low credit risk - Investments, loans, trade
receivables and other financial assets. Moderate credit risk / High credit risk - Loans and other financial assets, Mone of
the Company's cash equivalents, including time deposits with banks, are past due or impaired. Provision for expected
credil loss is based on 12 month cxpeeted credil loss/life-time expected credit loss,

Credit risk on cash and cash cquivalents and other bank balances is limited as the Company generally invests in deposils
with financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by credit raling agencies, Investments primarily include
investment in fixed deposits. The Company’s major trade reccivables and unbilled revenue are only with government
owned counterparty and are recoverable under the terms of power purchase agreements. Therefore, these trade receivables
and unbilled revenue are considered high quality.

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assels in the Balance
Shect

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

- Trade Receivables 2,517.45 1,803.23
- Other bank balances 252.36 1,158.10
- Security deposits _ 274.04 350.44
- Oher current financial asscts 49.21 29.10
- Cash and cash equivalents 122.81 1.564.54

The Company uses expected credit loss model o assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company uses a provision
matrix Lo compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables,

(i) Liquidity risk

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and by matehing the maturity profiles of financial assets and liahilities for the Company.
The Company has eslablished an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for it’s short-term, medium term and
long-term funding requirement.

Exposure to liguidity risk
The lollowing are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilitics at the repurting date. The contractual cash
[low amounts are gross and undiscounted, and includes interest accrued but not due on borrowings.
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Financial Iialliliticg:

Cuntractual cash flows
March 31, 2024 Carrying On Less than Beoveed More than
amount one and Tuotal
Demand one year five years
= five years
Borrowings® 74,883.02 - 11,431.15 34,301.98 93,705.20 1,39.438.33
Lcase Liability 1,647.65 - 54.96 30085 7,079.75 7.435.506
Trade payables 170,16 - 170,16 - - 170,16
Qli1+_.ar_ current financial 1.910.02 ) 1.910.02 ] 1.910.02
liahilitics e
Total 78.610.85 - 13,566.29 34,602.83 | 1,00,784.95 1,48,954.07
*Includes interest payable amount,
Contractual eash Nows B B
March 31, 2023 Carrying On Less than medyech More than
amount one and Total
Demand one year five vears
five years
Borrowings* T6,029.14 - 10,925.10 33,943 64 99.717.55 1.44.586.29
Leasc Liability 1,686.52 - 135.03 284.13 7.181.08 7.600.24
Trade payablcs 112.72 - 112.72 - - 112.72
Other current financial 2,761.24 - 2.761.24 - - 2,761.24
liahilitics
Total §0,589.62 - 13,934.09 34,227.77 1,06,898.63 1,55,060.49

* Includes interest pavable amount.

(iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will [luctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: intercst rate risk and currency risk. Vinancial instruments

affected by market risk include borrowings and bank deposits.

(a) Foreign Currency Risk

The Company has international transactions and is exposed to loreign exchange risk arising from forcign currency
lransactions. Foreipn exchanpe risk arises from recognized assels and liabilities denominated in a curreney that is nol the

Company’s lunclional currency.

Forcign currency risk exposure:

Particular Currency | March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
- {INR) (INKE)
| Financial liabilitics . —
Payables for Properly, plant and equipment UsD - 62.34
Retention Money Payable USD 59953 98.14
Buyers eredit sh 2,869.07 2,829.26
Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial
instruments.
Particular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Increase by 5% 148.43 149 .49
Decrease by 3% (148.43) | (149.49)
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{b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash Nows of 4 financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company s exposure Lo the risk of changes in markel inlerest rates relates primarily

to the Company s long-term obligation with foating inleresl rate.

Exposure to inferest rate risk

The Company's interest rale risk arises majorly from the borrowings carrying variable rate of interest. This obligation
exposcs the Company o cash [low inleresl rale risk. The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes

as reported o the management al the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Variable-rate instruments

Mareh 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Loan and bank borrowings®

Total

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a rcasonably possible change in interest rales on thal portion of loans
and borrowings affected, With all other variables held constant, the Company’s prolil belore tax is affected through the

impact on floating ratc bommowings, as follows:

Pa rliculars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Inerease by 0.5%
Diecrease by 0.5%

*The interest rate has been fixed (@ 8.50% lor three years (upto July 25, 2025), hence the company has no intercst rate

risk on its loans and borrowings as al 31 March, 2024

(c) Price Risk

The Company’s exposure to price risk arises from investments held and classified as FVTPL. To manage the price risk
arising from investments in mutual funds, the Company diversifics its portfolio of asscts,

I'rice risk exposure;

Particular - ~ March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Financial assets measured at Tair value through profit & Loss -
Investment in Mutual fund 2,203.20 -

Sensitivity analysis

Profit or loss and equity is sensitive Lo higher/lower prices of instruments on the Company’s profit for the year:

Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
| Increase by 5% 110.16 Nil
Diccrease by 5% {110.16) il

43. Cash flow hedges

A, Risk management strategy

The Company uses hedging instruments as part of its management of foreign currency risk. The risk being hedged 1s
the sk ol polential gain/loss due to fluctuation in foreign currency rates. The use of forward contracts is covered by
the Company's overall sirategy. The Company does not use forward for speculative purposcs. As per the strategy of
the Company, import of capital goods shall be covered by hedge, considering the risks associated with the hedging

26N Fig
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of such capital goods, which effectively fixes the liability of such imports and mitigates or climinate the linancial and
market risks in India (the place of business of the Company).

Hedge ratio is the relationship between the quantity of the hedging instrument and the quantity of the hedged item.
In the given case, total payment expected for import of modules are hedged under the lorward coniracts with the
approximately equivalent amount and at the same dates. Henee hedge is considered highly elleetive on the basis of
effectivenecss test of purchase of capital assets and corresponding forward contact laken for final payment,

B. Other hedge related disclosures

(i) The maturity profile of hedging instrument is as follows:

Less than | 1-3 years | More than Total

Particulars 1 vear 3 years

31 March 2024

Derivative liability -

Forward contract i R i

31 March 2023

Derivative liability -

Forward contract (TNR to USD hedge rate 282.3450) 465.20 B : 465.20

(i) In the Company's hedge relationship, source of hedge ineffectiveness are credil risk ol the counterparty or of the
Company and changes in timing of hedge transaction.

(iii) The impact of the hedging instruments on the balance sheel is, as [ollows:

o m—— — r
. Total Notional Fair ¥ nlue.FCnlr l‘}-‘!!]L C.hnn;,es in value of hedging
Particulars Aot Amount of derivative instrument recognised in

' (liability) / Asset OCT (Income) / Expense

March 31, 2024

Foreign exchange lorward contracts 7 = 2
March 31, 2023

Foreign exchange lorward contracts 463.20 0.53 (182.13)
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44, Ratio analysis
Ratio MNumerator Denominator 31-Mar- | 31-Mar- %o Beason fur
L _ - 24 23 Change variance
] . Current Liahilities Increase in current
Current Ratio Current Assets {excluding Buyer's 1,07 0.83 29.13% | asscts and decrease
B credit) in current liabilitics
Shareholder’s Equity
Total Debt ~ Current and ng:‘:!:r:ﬁgmmtmlly
Debt- Equit wn-current B s : .
s i d T “'T_?wmgq Debenture excluding 3.17 318 {0.20%)
Ratio (including Buyer's o
. d IND AS impact and
credit)
unsecurad loan from
B Holding company)
Earnings for debl service D.Cht service = Total
) e B fak Finance cost
Dieht Service G : {excluding non-cash
¢ : Deferred 1ax + Finance 1.31 .09 20.95%
overage ratio : [Pl G expenses) + Due
cost + Depreciation and
Aisiotitsati Instalments as per
norlisation
Dbt arrangements
Average
Sharcholder's Equity
{including Oplionally
Eeturn on Equity Convertible a o ;
ratio (*RoL') Tt Profite afver taxsd Debentures excluding G | (129000 | 78240 Dipgoedse i lossen
TN AS impact and
unsecurad loan from
- Holding company) B
Invenory . " i .
Tumnaver ratio Cost of goods h?ld Average Invenlory Mot Applicable
Trade Receivable | Total Revenue from Average Trade N . )
Turnover Ratio Gt pihendemens: Rl 4.83 3.29 46.73% | Increase in revenue
Trade Pavable Average Trade ; Increase in other
o z T ; a
Furnover Ratio otal other expenses Payables 6.44 9.79 {34.24%) R
Working capital
i Current assels — Increase in current
Met Capital Total Revenue from A
Tumover Ratio Contract with customess Cur ant_ilabjlmes 2938 (6.035) 585.91% assels and T:Ii:i:}'tl:ifsi:
{excluding Buyer's in current liabilities
credit)
N - . — Total Revenue from " . :
el Prolil ratio Met Profit after taxes operations (5.505%) | (44.18%) | Bo.87% Deerease in losses
. . Capilal Empluyn::d.=_
T Earnings before interest T
Return on Capital | Tangible Met Waorth 7 :
Employed ffuancv?: cost and laxes + Dbt + Deferred B.23% 4.02% I04.78% | Decrease in losses
(EBITY) i
tax liability
Feturn on v ;
T Finanee Income Investment Mot Applicable

Naote 2: Debt-Equity ratio as delined in linancing documents is 2,89 (March 31, 2023: 2.97).
Debt — Project Loan (Current and Non-current Borrowings)
Equity — Paid up Share Capital and Optionally Convertible Debentures from Halding Company for project.
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45. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new requirement for companies under the proviso Lo Rule 3(1)
of the Companies (Accounis) Rules, 2014 inserled by the Companies {Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring
companics, which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account, shall use enly such accounting sollware
which has a lealure of recording audit trail of cach and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the
books of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

The Company uses an accounting software for maintaining its books ol account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting

software. However, the audil trail (edit log) leature is nol enabled at database level to log any direct data changes, Further,
there is no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with where such feature is enabled.

46, Other statutory information

(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any Benami property.

(ii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is vel to be registered with ROC heyond the statutory
period.

(i11) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the linancial year.

{iv) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds o any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Inlermediarcy shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identificd in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the company {Ullimale Beneliciaries) or

(1) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneliciaries

{v) The Company has nol received any fund lrom any person(s) or entity(ies), including forcign entitics (Funding Party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identilied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Tltimate Beneficiaries.

{vi) The Company is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) ol section 2 ol the Companies
Acl, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriclion on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 (as amended),

{vii) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, scarch or survey

or any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961,

{viii) The Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institulion or other lender,
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{ix) The Company has not been sanctioned a working capital limit by banks or [inancial institutions, hence, the Company
is not required Lo file any quarterly return or statement with such banks or financial institutions,

As per our reporl of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo.: 001076N/MN300013

Deepak Mittal

Partner
Membership Mo, 503843

Place: Gurugram
Diate: September 16, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Juniper Green Field Private Limited

Naresh Mansukhani Puarag Agrawal
Director Director
DTN: 06990480 DIM: 02463717

Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram @

s
1

4

Prashant Pandia
Company Secretary
M. Mo. - F12077

Place: Gurugram
Date: Seplember 16, 2024



